
Questions Related to the RFQ for Residential Development Opportunities 

11th Avenue and 1st Street; Westmoreland Lots 

As of 3/22/2022 

Deadline for Submittals Clarification: All submissions are due before 11:59 pm on Monday April 11th. 

Westmoreland Lots Landfill Ordinance Clarification: The Westmoreland Lots are subject to the Landfill 

Ordinance, adopted in 2004. A Landfill Methane Development Plan will need to be approved and the 

City will facilitate the Developer’s compliance with the provisions of the Landfill Ordinance.   

Ground leasing is going to limit the finance products available for affordable housing construction. 

What is the City’s expectation for financing with these limitations? If 

 this model is financially non-feasible, other options in the proposal are allowed to be presented. 

Ground lease is intended to maintain affordability and not create a revenue source for the city. The 

lease fee would be nominal.  

What are the details on the city’s ground lease? How committed is the city to the ground leasing? 

The details of the ground lease will be worked out with the Developer once selected. The ground lease 

allows the city to provide the land for the project without requiring the developer to pay for the land. 

Based on discussions with our attorneys and experienced affordable housing consultants, this seems like 

the most viable solution to keep these projects affordable. However, the city is open to options if long-

term affordability can be achieved. 

 

The RFP mentions a max ground lease of 99 years. Is there a minimum ground lease?  

The City envisions a ground lease with the developer through construction and sale. The City would then 

hold a lease with each individual homeowner. Banks don’t see the 99-year lease as any different than 

fee simple. Submitters are welcome to propose a different ownership structure.  

 

Is the ground lease a single event whereby it no longer leases to the homeowner after sale? Or will 

the city maintain ownership of the land in perpetuity? 

City would maintain ownership of the land – Developer would lease land through construction and sale, 

and then the homeowners would buy the building from the developer. The goal here is to have long-

term affordable homeownership units.   

 

Will the City consider putting HOME funds into the project to make it affordable? ARPA? 

The City would consider putting HOME or other funding such as SLFRF ARP when/if available but are not 

committing anything specific. The proformas developed by the consultant suggests that including a few 

units of slightly higher area median incomes could help to offset the affordable units, making the 

projects feasible without additional City of Tucson subsidy.   

 

Can you please expand upon the team inclusion section? Please define small (# of employees), 

minority (does that include women-owned businesses)? Also, would a statewide developer with 

small, local and/or minority team members (architect and GC) qualify for the points under team 

inclusion? 



The inclusion section is intended to build local capacity and provide opportunities for disadvantaged 

businesses. Even if your organization is not formally designated, include information related to having 

an inclusive team that will build local capacity for affordable housing development.  

 

What infrastructure is in place now for the Westmoreland Lots? Are there 

sewer/water/gas/electricity for each of the old 14 platted units? How will that work with replatting?  

Our understanding is that full infrastructure is in place based on the 14-unit plat. The City will work with 

the selected developer on replatting if it is necessary for project.  

 

If there is already infrastructure in place, what impact or development fees would remain to be paid? 

Affordable Housing Impact Fee Subsidy policy/program is changing. Therefore, for this project, assuming 

a ground lease with the city (which would ensure the 20-years of affordability), any units built for 

households earning 100% area median income or lower would qualify for an impact fee subsidy.    

 

Are Joe Comelo’s (a former HCD employee) plans available? 

At this time, HCD staff does not have full architectural plans available for the site.  

 

Do you want 3 project examples for every partner organization? If we have a five firm team, do you 

want 15 project examples with capital stacks, etc?  

We want a minimum of 3 project examples. Feel free to provide 3 that are strongest, but an attachment 

with more project examples is welcomed.  

 

What is the difference between the “transmittal letter” and the “development team” elements in the 

Statement of Qualifications? 

The transmittal letter should be stated whereas the development team is looking for more in-depth 

narrative on the company and team members both sections including the components as listed in the 

RFQ.  

 

How will the city guarantee affordability with each future sale? What about inter-generational 

inheritance? 

The City envisions an arrangement similar to a Land Trust – Homeowner will get a bulk percentage of 

sale and the City will keep the land to ensure affordability moving forward.  

 

So the land trust is basically the instrument you will use? This will require a land trust partnership? 

A Land trust partnership is not required. The City of Tucson will work with the selected developer on the 

details of the homeownership ground lease.  

 

How will the city participate as a co-developer? 

The City of Tucson intends to participate through the following: contributing the land through the 

nominal ground lease, helping with community engagement, supporting the developer through the city 

permit and other development processes, and potentially providing additional funding. That said, the 

City of Tucson expects the Developer to be the lead with support of HCD. Open to ideas on how City can 

best support these projects.  



 
How does the city envision working with a Community Land Trust (CLT) with leased land?   
We are still exploring what the best path forward will be for the City of Tucson, the future homeowners, 
and the community at large in terms of the ground lease. No decisions have been made regarding a CLT 
with the leased land. Therefore, the City is open to suggestions via the proposal. 
 
Would the city be able to transfer ownership of the property to a CLT for stewardship with 
reversionary verbiage of some sort? Based on our Attorney’s Office interpretation, we would not be 
able to transfer ownership without getting the appraised value for the property. Currently, the City of 
Tucson is planning on retaining ownership of the land for both projects to ensure long-term 
affordability.  
 
Pima County Community Land Trust’s model is to enter into a 99-year and renewable ground lease 
with the homeowner. Would the City want to assign the lease to a land trust such as PCCLT?   
The City of Tucson is open to suggestions/proposals. The city would consider assigning the lease to a 
land trust such as PCCLT to then have the leases with the homeowners.  
 
Every new homeowner enters into a NEW 99-year ground lease…would this be allowable or is the 
term of the lease only 99 years?  
The goal is affordable housing in perpetuity for these sites and so new 99-year ground leases would be 
allowable.   
 
Would a nominal monthly lease fee be an allowable charge? Yes, a NOMINAL monthly lease fee would 
be allowable.  
  
What will happen at re-sale? Pima County Community Land Trust typically charges a transfer fee to 
help sustain our program/services.  Would that be allowed?   
HCD expects there will be a transfer fee and so yes, that will be allowed.  
 
Also, for the rent to own program, would the selected developer team be allowed to design this 
program and administer it and the tenants? Yes, we will ask proposers (under the RFP) to outline how 
the rent-to-own model would be administered.  
  
Do you have a template of the lease?  
Not yet. We expect to have a template when we issue the RFP.  
  
 


